Public Document Pack



Helen Barrington
Director of Legal and
Democratic Services

County Hall Matlock Derbyshire DE4 3AG

Extension 38372 Direct Dial 01629 538372 Ask for Anne Barrett

PUBLIC

To: Members of Cabinet Member meeting - Young People

Friday, 22 January 2021

Dear Councillor,

Please attend a meeting of the Cabinet Member meeting - Young People to be held at 11.00 am on Tuesday, 2 February 2021

This meeting will be held virtually. As a member of the public you can view the virtual meeting via the County Council's website. The website will provide details of how to access the meeting, the agenda for which is set out below.

Yours faithfully,

Helen Barrington

Director of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS

Helen E. Barington

Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations of interest (if any)

2. Minutes (Pages 1 - 2)

To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Member -

Young People held on 5 January 2021

To consider the non-exempt reports of the Executive Director for Children's Services on:

- 3 (a) Confirmation of Nominations of School Governors (Pages 3 4)
- 3 (b) Revised Fair Access Protocol for Primary Schools (Pages 5 16)
- 3 (c) Pooled budget for children with complex needs (Pages 17 22)

PUBLIC

Agenda Item No. 2

MINUTES of a meeting of the **CABINET MEMBER – YOUNG PEOPLE** held on 5 January 2021.

PRESENT

Cabinet Member - Councillor A Dale

Also in attendance – Councillors J Patten and J Coyle

01/21 MINUTES RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings of the Cabinet Member for Young People held on 8 December 2020 be confirmed as a correct record.

O2/21 CONFIRMATION OF NOMINATIONS OF SCHOOL GOVERNORS
The Cabinet Member was asked to confirm the nominations of persons to serve as local authority school governors. Appointments made by governing boards would be subject to the completion of a Declaration of Eligibility form, a proof of identity check and an enhanced DBS check.

RESOLVED that the Cabinet Member confirms the nominations for persons to serve as local authority governors as follows:-

D Tydeman-White - Whittington Green School
C Cooper - Curbar Primary School
S Spencer - Pilsley Cof E Primary School

S Spencer - Pilsley Cof E Primary School L Hyatt - Heath Fields Primary School



Agenda Item No. 3 (a)

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE

2 February 2021

Report of Executive Director for Children's Services

CONFIRMATION OF NOMINATIONS OF SCHOOL GOVERNORS

1. Purpose of report

To ask the Cabinet member to confirm the nominations of persons to serve as local authority school governors.

2. Information and Analysis

Nominations to school governing boards are proposed as set out below.

The Cabinet member is asked to confirm the nominations of persons to serve on the governing boards of these schools.

Any appointments made by governing boards will be subject to the completion of a Declaration of Eligibility form, a proof of identity check and an enhanced DBS check.

3. Other considerations

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been considered:prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity and health, legal, financial, personnel and property considerations.

4. Background Papers

Registration forms of applicants.

5. Key Decision?

No

6. Officer's Recommendation

That the nominations for persons to serve as local authority governors are confirmed.

Jane Parfrement
Executive Director for Children's Services

The Cabinet member is asked to confirm the **nominations** of the following persons to serve as local authority governors.

| Name | School | Nominating Councillor | Appointment |
|---------------------------------------|---|--------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| Erewash A Flint | Hallam Fields Junior School | J Frudd | New appointment |
| High Peak P Ambrose C Furness | Fairfield Infant & Nursery School New Mills School | L Grooby B Atkins | New appointment Re-appointment |
| North East A Thomas P Nicholson | Northfield Junior School Park House Primary School | D Charles K Gillott | Re-appointment Re-appointment |

Public

Author: Julie Griffiths (07795 283588) Agenda Item No: 3(b)

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE

2 February 2021

Report of the Executive Director for Children's Services

REVISED FAIR ACCESS PROTOCOL FOR PRIMARY SCHOOLS

1. Purpose of Report

To provide an update to the cabinet member of the revised Fair Access Protocol for primary schools and to request approval to implement.

2. Information and Analysis

The Department for Education statutory Guidance 'The School Admissions Code' (2014) requires that each local authority must have a fair access protocol. All schools and academies must participate in their local authority's protocol in order to ensure that unplaced children, who live in the home local authority, especially the most vulnerable, are offered a place at a suitable school in the home local authority as quickly as possible. This includes admitting children to schools that are already full.

The protocol is designed to ensure the admission to school of children and young people living in Derbyshire who find themselves in challenging circumstances and outlines the arrangements to support this. It is not intended to cover the majority of children for whom in-year admissions are a straightforward process and for whom normal admission arrangements apply. The protocol is triggered when a parent of an eligible child has not secured a place under the in-year admissions procedure. Eligibility for placement under the protocol does not remove the right of parents to express a preference for a particular school

through the normal admissions process. Normally children can only be placed through the protocol with parents' agreement.

The current protocol has been in place since the academic year 2015/16 and in order to allocate pupils fairly, has relied on a system of allocating points to schools admitting a pupil under these arrangements and deducting points for permanent exclusion. The process has proven unsatisfactory, too frequently resulting in children being without a school place for extended periods of time, due to schools not agreeing to their nomination.

The chair of the fair access panel raised the issue with primary headteacher colleagues at area heads' meetings in summer 2019, seeking their views on possible options going forward. Feedback was given in the autumn meetings of that year, resulting in agreement for a task and finish group to produce a revised protocol.

The group comprised nine headteachers, two governors and three officers of the council, who met four times to discuss issues and good practice, culminating in the co-production of a revised protocol. The revised protocol was presented to 197 headteachers at the area heads meetings in November 2020, who were asked to respond to the chair of the Fair Access Panel with any concerns or comments by 27 November. All primary heads, including those who did not attend the area heads' meetings, were given access to the protocol and invited to comment. Six responses were received, three of which raised concerns about the requirement to admit within seven days of nomination to take the child; two responses asked that funding for the longer term support of the child be agreed in advance; and one response requested clarification of details about the decision making process. The concerns relating to the admission timescale were around having sufficient time to organise staffing, if required. As permanently excluded pupils are the subject of the concerns, this can be allayed by the fact that there is a period of support from the Inclusion Pathways Team for the initial period of integration, so staffing would not need to be arranged by the school in the first instance.

In relation to a request that funding for longer term support be agreed in advance, this will not be possible, as not all reintegrating children will require longer term support and any request for ongoing support would be based on an assessment of individual need and the demonstration of the school's graduated response to meeting the need. One question related to how the decision to nominate a school would be made by the Fair Access Resolution Panel, if no agreement could be reached by local headteachers and this process is explained in the protocol. The low number of responses raising concerns suggests broad consent to the protocol, with the main revisions, as outlined below:

The revised protocol strengthens the requirement to attend a local meeting to agree the most appropriate school to meet a child's needs, by involving governors at an early stage. In addition, escalation following no agreement to admit a child is to a neutral Fair Access Resolution Panel, whose membership is drawn from headteachers and governors not linked to the particular schools involved in the dispute. Final escalation is also outlined, specifically direction to admit by the Secretary of State.

Since the consultation with headteachers, the Admissions Department has advised that the current School Admissions Code does not accept an Ofsted judgement of Inadequate as grounds for refusal of admission. Therefore, in order to avoid contradiction of the Code, this has also been removed from the revised protocol.

3. Financial Considerations

It is not anticipated that the revised protocol will result in any additional financial pressure. Schools admitting children under fair access arrangements are able to apply for temporary, additional pupils support (TAPS) funding, but in the last year, only two schools requested this supports, at a cost of £5,300.

4. Legal, Human Rights and Equality of Opportunity Considerations

A fair access protocol is a legal requirement as part of the School Admissions Code, to ensure that children and young people without a school place can be allocated a school quickly. The protocol is a protective factor against children missing out on their statutory entitlement to education and this revision of the protocol was prompted by a need to place children more quickly. Prompt allocation of a school place would ensure equality of opportunity to access education.

5. Human Resources Considerations

The implementation of the revised protocol will have no further implications for human resources than those which exist already for the current protocol. There will be a potential implication for headteachers and governors, should use of a fair access resolution panel be necessary, if a school cluster meeting fails to reach agreement about a school place. In such cases, a resolution panel meeting would need to be called, which would require a commitment of time, on occasion, by a small number of headteachers and governors.

6. Health Considerations

Research carried out by the University of Exeter research found evidence of a two-way relationship between child and adolescent mental illness and exclusion from school. The research found that exclusion could trigger long-term psychiatric illness, exacerbating existing mental health issues (Children's Services Network Policy Briefing, 2017). Parker et al, 2016 found that: 'Exclusion could also radically affect a child's social and emotional world in the abrupt ending of friendships and trusting relationships with teachers, and in the experience of rejection from school reinforcing a negative self-image'.

Prompt placement in an alternative school, where a child's sense of belonging and which provided the opportunity to form new friendships and relationship is an important mitigating factor against the risk of long term mental health issues as a result of permanent exclusion from school.

7. Transport Considerations

There may be transport considerations where a child cannot be placed in their normal area school. However, the protocol requests that transport be taken into consideration when allocating a school place. In any event children and young people may be entitled to transport assistance under the Local Authority's Home to School Transport policy.

8. Social Value Considerations

The opportunity for children to gain cultural capital, inspected under the Ofsted Inspection Framework introduced in September 2019, is provided when children are in school. The aim of the revised protocol to ensure that all children, especially the most vulnerable are offered a school in their locality quickly, is consistent with the inspection of schools' curriculum intent in the Ofsted framework, to:

'...give all learners, particularly the most disadvantaged and those with special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND) or high needs, the knowledge and cultural capital they need to succeed in life.'

9. Prevention of Crime and Disorder Considerations (if applicable).

The article 'Pinball Kids' (RSA, March 2020) reported that most UK prisoners were excluded from school, with 63 % having experienced a fixed term exclusion and 42% having been permanently excluded.

Furthermore, a permanent exclusion is estimated to cost £370,000 per young person in lifetime education, benefits, healthcare and criminal justice costs.

These findings underpin the importance of a prompt start at a new school for children, particularly in the primary phase of education, who have been excluded from school, or who are without a school place due to other challenging circumstances. The revised Fair Access Protocol aims to address this issue.

10. Background Papers

Revised Fair Access Protocol for primary schools as attached in Appendix 1.

11. Key Decision?

No

12. Is it necessary to waive the call-in period? No

13. Executive Director's Recommendation

To consider the updated information provided in this report and to approve the adoption and implementation of the revised Fair Access Protocol for primary schools.

Jane Parfrement
Executive Director for Children's Services

CONTROLLED

Derbyshire County Council Fair Access Protocol for primary schools

Purpose

'The School Admissions Code' requires that each local authority must have a fair access protocol. All schools and academies must participate in their local authority's protocol in order to ensure that unplaced children, who live in the home local authority, especially the most vulnerable, are offered a place at a suitable school in the home local authority as quickly as possible. This includes admitting children to schools that are already full.

The protocol is designed to ensure the admission to school of children and young people living in Derbyshire who find themselves in challenging circumstances and outlines the arrangements to support this. It is not intended to cover the majority of children for whom in-year admissions are a straightforward process and for whom normal admission arrangements apply. The protocol is triggered when a parent of an eligible child has not secured a place under the in-year admissions procedure. Eligibility for placement under the protocol does not remove the right of parents to express a preference for a particular school through the normal admissions process. Normally children can only be placed through the protocol with parents' agreement.

Exceptions

Children with an education, health and care plan (EHCP)

Children with EHCPs are not covered by this protocol, as their needs are considered separately through their plans, in accordance with the 'Special educational needs code of practice'.

Schools must not delay in admitting children with special educational needs but without EHCPS and children with disabilities or medical conditions. Where there is a prior need for particular support, or for reasonable adjustments, the school should involve the appropriate support services to ensure that such children are placed quickly.

Looked after children

Looked after children are not covered by this protocol, as these children must be admitted through in-year processes.

Principles

The fair access protocol:

- is fair and transparent
- takes into account the needs of the child and the needs of the school
- reduces the time that children spend out of school
- recognises the success of proactive work being undertaken cooperatively by schools to prevent exclusion and to support children e.g. managed moves
- ensures that no schools, including those with available places, are asked to take a disproportionate number of children who have been excluded from other schools, or who have challenging behaviour.

In order for the protocol to be successful:

- all schools will take part, even if they are responsible for their own admissions
- schools cannot cite over-subscription if they are asked to admit a child under the protocol
- fair access children will be given priority for admission over any others awaiting an appeal for admission
- schools must treat all requests for the admission of a fair access child as a matter of urgency
- schools cannot insist on an appeal hearing before admitting a child under this protocol
- the local authority should take account of any genuine concerns about the admission, for example, a previous serious breakdown in the relationship between the school and the family, or a strong aversion to or desire for the religious ethos of a school
- parents' and carers' views will be considered, and geographical factors will be taken into consideration, but these will not necessarily override the protocol

- consideration will be given to a child's religious affiliation when considering a suitable school but this will not override the protocol
- there is no duty for the local authority or admission authorities to comply with parental preference when allocating places through the protocol
- the protocol is binding on schools in the Derbyshire County Council area.

Circumstances in which the fair access protocol can be used

The protocol will be used for those pupils who are considered to be ready for mainstream schooling. For those pupils who are not yet ready, the local authority will make interim arrangements for them to be educated, short-term, either at a support centre, or by the local authority's education support services, who will prepare them for a return to school. However, a school will be nominated at an early stage, using the protocol, in order to facilitate reintegration at the appropriate time.

In the vast majority of cases, children requiring a school place will continue to be admitted in accordance with the usual admission arrangements, rather than through the protocol. The protocol is triggered when a parent of an eligible child has not secured a place under the in-year admissions procedure, or the child has been permanently excluded from school.

Where a school does not wish to admit a child with challenging behaviour outside of the normal admissions round, even though there are places available, it can refer the case to the local authority for action under the fair access protocol. This will normally be appropriate only where the school:

- has already admitted one child in the academic year who has been previously excluded
- can evidence that they have an unusually high proportion of children with challenging behaviour.

The protocol covers the following categories of children:

- A. permanently excluded children (including pupils at support centres and in other local authority education arrangements)
- B. children from the criminal justice system.
- C. children for whom it has been identified that they would benefit from a managed move
- D. children moving into Derbyshire having received 'out of school' packages in their previous authority
- E. traveller children*

- F. homeless children
- G. children whose parents have been unable to find them a school place after moving into the area, because of a shortage of places, and there are no places available within the distance travelled to the normal area school and beyond 5 miles measured by the nearest available route*
- H. children of refugees and asylum seekers
- I. children for whom a place has not been sought
- J. children in refuges*
- K. children who have been out of education for two months or more
- L. children who are carers
- M. children with special educational needs or with disabilities or medical conditions (but without an EHCP)
- N. children of UK service personnel and other Crown servants
- * In these categories, where the normal area/local school is a Derbyshire school, children will be placed at the normal/local area school. In the case of a shared normal area then the placement will be at the nearest school to the child's home address, unless it is deemed an inappropriate placement by the fair access panel.

Process

- 1. Other than for managed moves (see managed move protocol for details of arrangements) the fair access panel will determine whether a child is identified as being eligible for placement under the fair access protocol, based upon information received from the referring agency, which demonstrates that they meet one of the above criteria (A N).
- 2. Once a child has been defined as eligible the fair access panel will initiate the protocol and either, according to the agreed criteria, contact the normal/local area school or alert the lead agency to arrange a cluster meeting of up to the 10 nearest Derbyshire schools to the child's home address.
- 3. A letter of invitation to the meeting will be addressed to the headteacher and copied to the chair of governors.
- 4. Summary 'profile on a page' information about the child to be placed and confirmation of support available will be circulated at the meeting.
- 5. The protocol obliges all invited schools to attend the meeting, where attendees will be responsible for agreeing a placement for the child.
- 6. If the cluster meeting fails to agree a school place, the chair of the fair access panel will take the reasons presented to the fair access resolution panel, whose decision will be based on a majority vote and will be binding. This panel will include neutral headteacher and governor representation.
- 7. Once a school has been nominated, arrangements should be made to admit the child to school within seven calendar days of the nomination.

Escalation process

Should a nominated school refuse to admit a child, escalation will be pursued, culminating in a direction to admit by the director of children's services, the Secretary of State for Education, or the Education Funding Agency, depending on the school's governance arrangements, as follows:

| Type of school | Escalation route |
|--------------------------------|---|
| Voluntary aided and Foundation | The local authority, in consultation with the governing body, which may refer to the school adjudicator within 15 days. |
| Academies | The Education Funding Agency / Secretary of State for Education |
| Maintained | Director of children's services, who may refer to the Secretary of State for Education, if not resolved. |

Funding and additional support

Support from the Inclusion pathways team for reintegration of children who have been permanently excluded will be available for a period of up to two Derbyshire terms. Where additional support for successful transition is needed, the receiving school can apply for one Derbyshire term (6 weeks) of temporary additional pupil support (TAPS) funding to support the transition period. The receiving school should submit a clear plan with costings to the TAPS panel aimed at supporting the child/young person's social, emotional and mental health needs throughout their transition. For subsequent TAPS funding, the school will be required to follow the usual procedure, demonstrating how they have supported the child/young person. TAPS can be accessed by application to a weekly local authority panel (term time only).

Monitoring

The fair access protocol will be monitored by the Derbyshire admissions forum and reported on annually as part of the local authority's report on admissions. Numbers of children admitted through this process will be monitored by the fair access panel.

Schools will be responsible for confirming with the local authority that children have been admitted within seven calendar days of the admission date.

Recognition of a fair access admission will be given by a letter of acknowledgement to the receiving school.



PUBLIC

Author: James Gracey Agenda Item No: 3 (c)

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE

2 February 2021

Report of the Executive Director for Children's Services

POOLED BUDGET FOR CHILDREN WITH COMPLEX NEEDS – (Children's Services)

1. Purpose of the Report

To seek Cabinet Member for Young People approval for the continuation of an agreement with a pooled budget arrangement between the Derbyshire County Council (**DCC**) and Derby and Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group (**DDCCG**) to provide and fund support packages for children and young people with complex needs for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2023, with the option to extend to 31 March 2024.

2. Information and Analysis

Children and young people under the age of 19 with complex needs require input from several different agencies to meet those needs, including all or a combination of social care, health care and support for educational special needs.

In support of children and young people with complex needs, an agreement with a pooled budget arrangement between the Council and the CCG, pursuant to Section 75 of the National Health Service (NHS) Act 2006 has been in operation since April 2013. Historically a pooled budget arrangement with Health Partners - Derbyshire County Primary Care Trust has existed since July 2010.

The Section 75 agreement with a pooled budget arrangement has to date enabled funding allocations for complex cases to be managed in an efficient way in accordance with decisions made by a multi-agency monthly Complex Needs Panel (Children's Services, Adult Care, Virtual School and Health representatives).

The annual budget established in 2010 was £6,340,000 with a target to reduce care costs by 5% and reduce the considerable administration associated with this type of placement for both CCG and DCC officers. The original agreement was successful in containing costs, minimising bureaucracy and most importantly delivering timely specialist placements. However, there has been no inflationary increase in the budget over the last decade and the spend is not in line with the current budget. The actual spend for 2019/20 was £7.17m and had the budget increased each year in line with inflation, the 2010 budget would equate to £7.65m in 2019/20 - therefore demonstrating a real term reduction in costs.

The average cost of placements is increasing; in 2014/15 it was £3,653 per week on average. By 2019/20, this average cost had dramatically risen to £4,396 per week with a further increase in 2020/21 to £4,721 per week. This cost increase has been driven by demand exceeding supply and the increasing complexity of the needs of these children. This cohort of children and young people are some of the most vulnerable in Derbyshire. The majority are children in care and experience a range of health and special educational needs that cannot collectively be addressed by local or standard services.

The Section 75 has been recognised by HMI, CQC and Ofsted as "successful" and "ensures a joined-up approach to the commissioning of services for those children who meet the local criteria of 'high complex needs'" (Derbyshire Local Area SEND Inspection November 2016). There are approximately 30 children at any one time who benefit from provision funded by this pooled budget.

Partners to the arrangement regularly share concerns regarding the quality of available information on support needs and provision. One issue in particular is that the health information provided and placement decisions made are frequently undertaken without input from CCG commissioners; although relevant health professionals have been part of the individual case planning. The review identified insufficient capacity within the CCG Childrens Commissioners or Designated Nurse for Children in Care to review each of the placements on a regular basis.

As a result of the review DDCCG approved funding to commission two case manager roles to support and assure the complex cases process.

The operationalisation of these roles is currently being developed in line with the identified gaps, aiming to overcome the concerns highlighted and to build capacity to review placements more regularly. The review also highlighted opportunities for improvements in the procedures and these are being implemented as part of a revised Section 75 agreement.

Approval of the Section 75 arrangement to continue for a further period of 2 years (with an option of a third year) would maintain continuity and allow proposals and changes to be embedded to ensure the most effective use of this agreement.

Agreement has been obtained from the CCG Governing Body for this Section 75 agreement to continue for a further period of 2 years, subject to following and implementing the recommendations that are outlined in the review dated July 2020. Formal approval by the CCG will be sought from their Governing Body.

3. **Financial Considerations**

The total Section 75 budget per annum is now agreed at £7.2m moving forward.

Expenditure for the 2019/20 financial year totalled £7.17m. Based on spend to date (expenditure and placement end dates), a similar level of spend is projected for 2020/21. This does not take into account any new cases identified in the remaining months. Actions are ongoing by the DCC Children's Commissioning and Contracts Team to minimise any overspend through regular review of each placement.

Contributions

DCC

34% £2,448,000 Social care Education 33% £2,376,000

Derby and Derbyshire CCG

Health 33% £2,376,000

£7,200,000

The current agreement determines that any over-spend of the pooled budget will be borne by the Council and the CCG in proportion to their contribution for the financial year in question.

The current net budget allocated to the pooled budget by Children's Services for the Social care contribution is £1,768,000 and projected net spend is £2,436,000. The overspend has been highlighted in the budget

process and Children's Services budget monitoring report and will be considered as part of the budget setting process for 2021/22.

The Education contribution will be considered by Schools Forum as part of the budget setting process for the High Needs Block allocation within the Dedicated Schools Grant.

4. Legal and Human Rights Considerations

An agreement made pursuant to Section 75 of the National Health Service (NHS) Act 2006 allows arrangements for pooling resources and delegating certain NHS and local authority health-related functions.

Arrangements made by virtue of Section 75 do not affect the liability of CCG bodies or local authorities in relation to the exercise of any of their functions.

The Director of Legal Services will advise in connection with the Agreement and with regard to any future proposals relating to this.

5. Human Resources Considerations

The Authority will not need to employ any additional staff as a result of approval to the extension request of this Section 75 agreement with pooled budget arrangement.

6. Other Considerations

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been considered: Equality and Diversity, Health, Environmental, Transport, Property and Prevention of Crime and Disorder considerations.

7. Key Decision

No.

8. Is it required that call-in be waived in respect of the decisions proposed in the report?

N/A.

9. Background Papers

Cabinet Report, 20th September 2018.

Section 75 Pooled Budget Review, 30th July 2020.

10. Officer Recommendation

That the Cabinet Member for Young People gives approval for the Authority to enter into a Section 75 agreement with pooled budget arrangement with the Derby and Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group for a further period of 2 years (with an option of a third year), in order to provide and fund support packages for children and young people with complex needs whilst carrying out a review of current processes and placements.

Jane Parfrement
Executive Director for Children's Services

